

                    CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 


 


                              15728 Main Street, Mill Creek, WA 98012 (425) 745-1891 


  
 


  


 


Pam Pruitt, Mayor • Brian Holtzclaw, Mayor Pro Tem • Mark Bond 


Mike Todd • Vince Cavaleri • John Steckler • Stephanie Vignal 
   


 


Regular meetings of the Mill Creek City Council shall be held on the first, second and fourth Tuesdays of 
each month commencing at 6:00 p.m. in the Mill Creek Council Chambers located at 15728 Main Street, Mill 
Creek, Washington. Your participation and interest in these meetings are encouraged and very much 
appreciated. We are trying to make our public meetings accessible to all members of the public. If you 
require special accommodations, please call the office of the City Clerk at (425) 921-5725 three days prior to 
the meeting.  


 


The City Council may consider and act on any matter called to its attention at such meetings, whether or not 
specified on the agenda for said meeting. Participation by members of the audience will be allowed as set 
forth on the meeting agenda or as determined by the Mayor or the City Council.  


 


To comment on subjects listed on or not on the agenda, ask to be recognized during the Audience 
Communication portion of the agenda. Please stand at the podium and state your name and residency for 
the official record. Please limit your comments to the specific item under discussion. Time limitations shall be 
at the discretion of the Mayor or City Council.  


 


Study sessions of the Mill Creek City Council may be held as part of any regular or special meeting. Study 
sessions are informal, and are typically used by the City Council to receive reports and presentations, review 
and evaluate complex matters, and/or engage in preliminary analysis of City issues or City Council business.  


   


 


Next Ordinance No. 2019-850 


Next Resolution No. 2019-579 


April 2, 2019 


City Council Meeting 


6:00 PM 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
AUDIENCE COMMUNICATION 
 


A. Public comment on items on or not on the agenda   
 
RECESS TO EXECUTIVE SESSION 


(Confidential session of the Council)  
 


B. To evaluate the qualifications of an applicant for public employment pursuant to RCW 
42.30.110(1)(g) 


  


Action may or may not be taken.   
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 







C. Settlement Agreement  Between the City of Mill Creek and Comcast Regarding Franchise Fee 
Audit  


(Peggy Lauerman, Director of Finance & Administration)  
 
STUDY SESSION 
 


D. 2019 Winter Storm Response Update 


(Gina Hortillosa, Director of Public Works & Development Services)   
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 


E. City Council Meeting Minutes of December 4, 2018  
 
REPORTS 
 


F. Mayor/Council  
 


G. City Manager 


• Council Planning Schedule   
 


H. Staff 


• Contract for Domestic Violence Services   
 
AUDIENCE COMMUNICATION 
 


I. Public comment on items on or not on the agenda  
 
RECESS TO EXECUTIVE SESSION 


(Confidential Session of the Council) 
 


J. Consideration of real estate matters pursuant to RCW 42.30.120(1)(b)(c) 


  


Action may or may not be taken.   
 
ADJOURNMENT 


Page 2 of 78







;


‘'4
CITY or 2-1.,(_ CAgenda Item #


W A S H I N G T 0 N Meeting Date: April 2, 2019


CITY COUNCIL AGENDA SUMMARY
City of Mill Creek, Washington


AGENDA ITEM: SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF MILL
CREEK AND COMCAST REGARDING FRANCHISE FEE
AUDIT/REVIEW


PROPOSED MOTION:


Authorize the City Manager to execute the agreement with Comcast Cable Communications,
LLC (“Comcast”), in full settlement of all Franchise Fee payment obligations for the period from
January 1, 2011 through December 31, 2017 (“Settlement Period”).


KEY FACTS AND INFORMATION SUMMARY:


As discussed in previous meetings with Council, The Cohen Law Group (“CLG”) was engaged
by the City ol’Mil1 Creek (the “City”) to complete a franchise fee review of Comcast, pursuant to


Section 3.5 of the Cable Franchise Agreement (“Agreement”) between the two parties. The
review period corresponds to a six-year period beginning January 1, 2011 and ending December
31, 2017.


After an in—depthreview, CLG has found Comcast to be non-compliant with respect to the
following areas of inquiry.


Fee—On—FeeRevenues


Pursuant to the audit, CLG discovered that Comcast did not include “franchise fees” in its
franchise fee payment calculations in violation of the Agreement. In the de?nition of “gross
revenues” as set forth in Section 1.27 of the Agreement, “franchise fees” are specifically listed as
a revenue source that is required to be included in franchise fee calculations.


TV Guide Revenues


CLG also discovered that for the month of November 2014, Comcast omitted TV guide revenues


from its franchise fee calculations.


Cost of the Audit


Section 3.5, Audits, of the Agreement states, “If the audit shows that Franchise Fee payments
have been underpaid by three percent (3%) or more, Grantee shall pay the total cost of the audit,
such audit cost not to exceed live thousand dollars ($5,000) times each year covered by the audit
period.” The above underpayments and penalties as described above total $92,607.17.


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Settlement Agreement Between the City of Mill Creek and Comcast Regardin... Page 3 of 78







The total underpayment of $92,607.17 exceeds three percent, and thus Comcast is responsible for
reimbursing the City for the cost of the audit. CLG performed the franchise fee audit of
Comcast on a ?at fee basis, and the total cost ofthe audit was $5,310.


CITY MANAGER RECOMMENDATION:


Authorize the proposed settlement agreement with Comcast for the settlement period.


ATTACHMENTS:


0 Attachment A: Settlement Agreement between the City of Mill Creek and Comcast
regarding franchise fee audit/review.


en S. Stowe
Interim City Manager


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Settlement Agreement Between the City of Mill Creek and Comcast Regardin... Page 4 of 78







SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE
CITY OF NHLL CREEK AND COMCAST REGARDING


FRANCHISE FEE AUDIT/REVIEW


This Settlement Agreement (“Settlement Agreement”) is dated this day of March,
2019, by and between Comcast Cable Communications, LLC (“Comcast”), and the City of
Mill Creek, a Washington municipal corporation (“City”). Comcast and the City may be
individually referred to hereafter as a “Party” or jointly as the “Parties.”


RECITALS


WHEREAS, Section 3.1 of Mill Creek Ordinance No. 2006-652 permits the City to
receive from Comcast a franchise fee in the amount of ?ve percent of Comcast’s gross
revenues (“Franchise Fee”);


WHEREAS, the City engaged the ?rm of Cohen Law Group to conduct a review of
Comcast’s Franchise Fee payments for the period from January 1, 2011 through December
31, 2017 (“Audit Period”);


WHEREAS, Comcast received a letter prepared by Cohen Law Group dated May
22, 2018 regarding its audit (“Audit Report”), and Comcast agrees that additional franchise
fees are owed to the City for the Audit Period;


WHEREAS, the Parties deem it to be to their mutual bene?t to settle their
differencesfor all Franchise Fee payment issues for the period from January 1, 2011
through December 31, 2017 (“Settlement Period”) by this Settlement Agreement, and to
resolve all such disputes and specify the terms under which Comcast will pay the City the
sum of $92,607. 17 (“Settlement Payment”) in full settlement of all Franchise Fee payment
obligations for the Settlement Period.


NOW THEREFORE, in considerationof and exchange for the mutual bene?ts and
undertakings described herein, and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt
and suf?ciency of which is hereby acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows:


1. PAYMENT BY COMCAST
Within thirty (30) days of delivery to Comcast of a counterpart original of this


Settlement Agreement executed by the City, Comcast shall deliver to the City Finance
Director a check made payable to the City of Mill Creek in the amount of $92,607.17.
Comcast reservesthe right to pass through the adjustment to customers for any
underpaymentswhich have not already been collected as franchise fees; provided that
under no circumstances shall Comcast charge more than 6.99% of gross revenues in any
one month as a franchise fee. Such pass through adjustment may begin in May 2019.


2. RELEASE OF ALL CLAIMS AND FINAL SATISFACTION AND RELEASE
OF PAYMENT OBLIGATIONS


Upon negotiation of the Settlement Payment check and con?nnation by the City


{SXM184954l .DOCX; 3/05739 .000006/ }


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Settlement Agreement Between the City of Mill Creek and Comcast Regardin... Page 5 of 78







that the Settlement Payment proceeds have been deposited in the City’s bank account, the
Parties hereby release and discharge each other from all claims related to Franchise Fee
payments for the Settlement Period. Payment by Comcast to the City pursuant to Section 1
and Section 2 hereof shall be deemed full and ?nal satisfactionand release of Comcast’s
Franchise Fee payment obligations for the Settlement Period.


3. NO WAIVER OR CONCESSION OF THE METHOD OF CALCULATION OF
GROSS REVENUES


The Parties mutually agree that this Settlement Agreement controls only the
Settlement Period and is neither precedent nor waiver by either Party of any claim,
methodology or interpretation of the Franchisee’s gross revenues for any future audit of
periods not within the Settlement Period.


4. GENERAL PROVISIONS


(a) Each Party covenants and agrees that it will not make, assert or maintain
any claim, demand, action or cause of action that is discharged by this Settlement
Agreement against the other Party; provided, however, that either Party may bring an
action against the other Party to enforce this Settlement Agreement.


(b) Each Party represents that it has not conveyed or assigned any claims
released by this Settlement Agreement to any third parties. Each Party represents and
warrants that it has the power and authority to enter into this Settlement Agreement. Any
breach of this Settlement Agreement shall be subject to all remedies available to the Parties
at law or in equity. In addition, any breach of this Settlement Agreement shall be deemed
a breach of the Franchise Agreement, and shall be subject to all of the remedies available
under the Franchise Agreement.


(c) The Settlement Agreement sets forth the entire agreement of the Parties
with respect to its subject matter, there being no other promise or inducement to or for the
execution of this Settlement Agreement other than the considerationcited above. There
are no contingencies, conditionsprecedent,representations,warranties, or other agreement,
oral or otherwise, regarding settlement between the Parties not stated herein.


(d) The Parties acknowledge that this Settlement Agreement is the product of
negotiations between the Parties and does not constitute, and shall not be construed as, an
admission of liability on the part of any Party.


(e) This Settlement Agreement shall inure to the bene?t of, and shall be
binding on, the Parties’ respective successors and assigns. There are no third party
bene?ciaries of this Settlement Agreement.


(f) This Settlement Agreement may not be modi?ed or amended, nor any of its
terms waived, except by an amendment signed by duly authorized representatives of the
Parties.


(g) This Settlement Agreement shall be construed and enforced in accordance
with the laws of the State of Washington without regard to con?icts of law principles. All


{SXI-11849541.DOCX;3/05739.000006/} - 2 —


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Settlement Agreement Between the City of Mill Creek and Comcast Regardin... Page 6 of 78







actions or suits brought hereunder or arising out of this Settlement Agreement shall be
brought in the appropriate State or Federal courts in Washington, and in no other courts.


(h) This Settlement Agreement shall be effective upon the last date it is
executed on behalf of Comcast and the City. The last Party to sign this Settlement
Agreement shall promptly transmita color pdf or hard copy of this Settlement Agreement
to the other Party.


(i) All time frames expressed in terms of days shall mean calendar days, and if
the time allowed for action required hereunder shall expire on a Saturday, Sunday, or
holiday as de?ned, and if the time allowed for action required hereunder shall expire on a
Saturday, Sunday, or holiday as de?ned by the laws of the State of Washington, then the
expiration shall automatically be the next calendar day that is not a Saturday, Sunday, or
holiday. All time frames are agreed to be of the essence.


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Settlement Agreement to
be executed by duly authorized representativesof each Party on the dates written below.


CITY OF MILL CREEK, Washington


By:
Robert S. Stowe, Interim City Manager I Date


ATTEST:


By‘
‘GinaP?ster, Acting City Clerk


APPROVED AS TO FORM


By:
Scott Missall. City Attorney


COMCAST CABLE COMMUNICATIONS, LLC


By:'


Name:


Title:


Date:


{SXM1849541.DOCX;3/05739.000006/} - 3 -


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Settlement Agreement Between the City of Mill Creek and Comcast Regardin... Page 7 of 78







CITY or A,/,_
Agenda ltein 31L


WA 5 H I N G T O N Meeting Date: April 2, 2019


CITY COUNCIL AGENDA SUMMARY
City of Mill Creek, Washington


AGENDA ITEM: 2019 Winter Storm Response Update


PROPOSED MOTION:


No action required. Information provided for Council review and direction.


KEY FACTS AND INFORMATION SUMMARY:


According to the National Weather Service, last February Seattle saw the most snow in a single
month in 50 years and one of the eight snowiest months since records started in 1891. Seattle
generally receives 5 to 7 inches of snow annually. More than 20 inches fell in fewer than 10
days last month.


The storm proved to be more signi?cant than originally anticipated by many local jurisdictions.
City Hall was first closed on Monday, February 4“‘.The City was subsequently closed on
Monday February l1“‘and Tuesday February l2“‘.On these three days, only essential personnel
such as Police and Public Works crew reported to work. The City Manager proclaimed an


emergency on Monday February 1l“‘this allowed all resources to be focused on the storm


response and lifted regular procurement protocols to secure additional resources,


Public Works Resources for Response
The City of Mill Creek has a crew of 4.7 FTEs. From February 15‘through February 15“‘,crew


members worked 12 hour shifts with a total of 107 hours ofovertime. Public Work vehicles and
equipment used during the response are shown in Table 1.


Snohomish County crews provided snowplowing and sanding services along our first priority
mutual aid routes and some second priority routes (Attachment 1). However, the amount of
snow made it difficult for the County to keep up. This was particularly the case with the hill on
Mill Creek Road. This hill was closed for two days of the storm and created access challenges
for the Emerald Heights Neighborhood (Attachment 2). Additionally, in spite of multiple calls
and even a request submitted via Snohomish County Department of Emergency Management
after the City’s emergency proclamation, the Washington State Department of Transportation did
not plow State Route 527 nor State Route 96.


The Emergency Proclamation issued on February 11“‘,waived regular contracting protocols and
made it possible for staff to hire KLB Construction, Inc. Staff executed a contract with KLB
Construction and snow plowing operations began only twelve hours after the proclamation. The
contractor plowed for sixteen continuous hours starting on the evening of February 11“‘and
focused on State Route 527, State Route 96, Seattle Hill Road, Mill Creek Road (hill), Dumas


AGENDA ITEM #D.


2019 Winter Storm Response Update (Gina Hortillosa, Director of Public W... Page 8 of 78







Road and three parking lots —CityHall, Annex Building and the Mill Creek Library. In addition
to the snow accumulated on the ground, approximately 6 inches of fresh snow fell in south
Snohomish County on the evening of February 11"‘.


The City’s Dobson Remillard property was used as a yard to store sand and salt. Supplies were
covered with atarp to prevent clumping.


Table 1. Public Works Vehicles and Eguipment(February2019 snowstorm)
l PublicWorks Vehicles and Eui ment I


Operations and Maintenance
_


Year ResponseI
Ei3—Z
2001 PW 2 E Isuzu NPRHDDum (2 wheel drive)


,
n Isuzu NPRHDStake Bed 2 wheel drive) 1,
t
:—:_
_—
1“ GMCsonoma(non oerablel


,_
Equipment Zj


‘


1——
Zj
2007 Western Snow Plow Blade Failed on Februa 15th


‘


1-
:3m Toroz Master 48" Mower —


Tank and ump


FlatbedTrailer w/Mounted500 Gallon


Public Works Response Estimated Cost
The crew’s response to the snow storm began on Sunday February 3"’and they were dedicated to
the storm response thru the weekend of February 15"‘.Regular work hours were spent snow
plowing, applying sand/salt mix, de-icing and removing fallen tree limbs. In addition to regular
hours, the estimatedPublic Works response cost is $26,209 as shown on Table 2 below.
Snohomish County has not yet invoiced the City. Hence, their costs are not included in Table 2.


Table 2. Cost Estimate for Febru 2019 Storm Res onse_


KLBConstruction


Crew OT (estimate)


Rental (front loader)


ota I


AGENDA ITEM #D.


2019 Winter Storm Response Update (Gina Hortillosa, Director of Public W... Page 9 of 78







Like for most snow events and similar to most Cities_in the Puget Sound area, last month the
City of Mill Creek focused on providing adequate mobility on State Routes, collectors and
arterials. Clearing residential streets was not a priority or within the City’s ?nancial or
operational capabilities. Nonetheless, on February 14"‘,after priority routes had been cleared, a
joint meeting with Fire District 7, the City’s Police and Communications and Marketing
Departments and Public Works was held to identify residential roads that would bene?t from
snow plowing. These residential streets were identi?ed based on roadway steepness and icy
conditions.


Some Homeowner Associationsopted to hire private parties to plow residentialstreets. For
instance, Spring Tree was able to locate a private landscaping company that snow plowed their
streets for $350.


The City is responsible for approximately 77 lane miles of residential streets. In March, the City
requested a cost estimate from KLB Construction for snow plowingresidential streets. They
conveyed that this would depend on the snow event itself, quality of the service and speed of
snow removal. For instance, the City may request the contractor to mobilize many plows so that
roads are quickly cleared. Mobilization charges range from $1,000 to $2,000 per piece of
equipment. Additionally, the quality of the services can vary-snow plowing innately creates
undesired benns at driveways and cross streets. KLB’s hourly charges vary between $150 to
$205 per piece of equipment -there is a 4 hour minimum on equipment and overtime rates apply
past an eight hour shift. For plarmingpurposes, the approximatecost of plowing residential
streets is in the range of $50,000 to $100,000. Although this is lower than the initial and
preliminaryprojection of costs ($200,000 to $300,000) based on the time and cost for plowing
the City’-smain transportation routes, it is still a signi?cant expense and will vary based on the
severity of the storm.


Public Works Response —Challenges
The Public Works crew faced challenges which include:


0 Regional shortage of salt. The City’s crew rationed salt applicationsand focused on hills,
collectors and arterials.


0 City owned sander broke on Monday February 4“‘.Through social media
communicationsand coordinationwith Emergency Management at the City of
Sarnrnamish,the City was able to borrow a sander on Sunday February'10“‘.


0 The City has a fuel account with Station 76. The only diesel location is at 164“‘Street SE
and SR 527. This particular location shutdown their diesel pumps at night during the
snow storm. Crew had to drive outside of City limits to refuel.


0 Equipmentlimitations:
0 The City does not own a single 4x4 vehicle with the ability to simultaneously


snow plow and sand. Therefore, sanding and snow plowing operations occur in
separate passes. This is time consuming and not ef?cient.


o Limited 4x4 capabilities. Chains were installed on sander and wore out after ten
days due to extended use.


0 The blade of the snow plow sheared on the early morning hours of Friday February 15“‘.
A crew member was able to weld the plow together by the end of the day.


0 Safety concerns:


AGENDA ITEM #D.


2019 Winter Storm Response Update (Gina Hortillosa, Director of Public W... Page 10 of 78







0 Two accidents involving crew members occurred during the storm response:
A) The ?rst accident occurred on Monday February 4th (morning hours) as a


crew member was at the intersection of SR 527 and Mill Creek Boulevard. A
car spun out of control when making the turn and slide into the sander truck,
PW 2. The crew member reported the accident to his supervisor. Police took
a report. The sander truck had minimal damage and was placed back in
service. No personal injurieswere sustained.


B) On Saturday February 9"‘(morninghours) , one crew member ?lled up the
sander truck at the City owned Dobson Remillard property and due to ice and
deep snow slid off the edge of the driveway and into a small ditch. He was
working alone and called his supervisor. Mary’s Tow Trucking was contacted
and able to winch the truck back onto the driveway. The sander truck was not
damaged and was placed back in service. No personal injuries were sustained.


0 Given the amount of work and limited crew size, in multiple occasions, crew
membersworked alone and withouta spotter on SR 527 during night hours.
Some of the work conducted under these conditions consisted of hand shoveling
sand on the roadway insteadof using a sander. This posed a considerablerisk to
their personal safety since they had no physical protection?'om traf?c. The
Department will not authorize this risk in future events. Additionally, some crew
members reported being mockedby drivers while working alone. This presented
an additional distractionunder the already challenging work conditions.


Interruption of Waste Management residential services. Commercial pick up services
were continuous.
Misalignment of resident expectations and available resources. The City received
numerous requests for snow plowingof residential roads and sidewalk snow removal.
Although these requests are understandable,the City does not have the resources to
independently respond to emergency events. Recent events for which the City has relied
on other agencies for support:


o November 2017, ?ood on 136"‘St SE caused by a beaver dam breach
0 December 2017, sinkhole at Sweetwater Ranch caused by failed storm water pipe
0 February 2019, icy roads and accumulation of snow caused by storm


Public Works Response —HelpfulActions
Staff identi?ed actions and conditions that proved to be helpful during the snow storm. These
include:


Appropriate management commtmicationand crew skills facilitated an overall sense of
awareness of what work that needed to be done under dynamic conditions. For instance,
one crew member driving on 153"‘Street SE noticed snow accumulation at Snohomish
County Fire Station 76. He independentlymade the decision to clean up the driveway to


the Fire Station.
Interdepartmentalcommunicationwas frequent and adequate. Additionally, at a broader
level, communication with Snohomish County Department of Emergency Management
was helpful in providing situational awareness at a countywide level.
Securing resources prior to the storm. Sand, salt and rental of front loader occurred on
February 1“. Early plarming ensured the City had suf?cient de—icerand new tires on two


City trucks (PW 1 and PW 5).


AGENDA ITEM #D.


2019 Winter Storm Response Update (Gina Hortillosa, Director of Public W... Page 11 of 78







0 City Manager Emergency Proclamationfacilitated the hiring of KLB Construction Inc.
0 No widespread or sustained power outages were reported within City of Mill Creek


boundaries.


Lessons Learned
On February 28"‘,an after action debrief was conducted. The debrief was facilitated by Director
of Public Works and Development Services Gina Hortillosa and in attendance wereChief Greg
Elwin, Deputy Chief Scott Eastman, Nathan Beagle Public Works Supervisorand four crew
members. Three lessons learned were identi?ed:


0 Diesel fire] up of vehicles needs to occur during day hours since pumps at Station 76 may
be closed at night. The crew is infonned of this for future emergency events.


0 Barricade sign at Mill Creek Road needs to read “Road closed to thru traf?c” instead of
“Bypassing this sign is a criminal violation of RCW 47.48.040). This would clarify to
Emerald Heights residents that since their only ingress/egress route is via Mill Creek
Road they indeed are not breaking the law. The City owns the proper signs and these will
be installed in future emergency’events.


0 Live communicationbetween the Public Works crew and the Police Department can be
improved by the use of radios insteadof cell phones. Additional coordinationbetween
both departmentsneeds to happen in order to implement this in future emergency events.


Public Works —Opportunities for Improvement
There are opportunities for improvement in purchasing a backup for certain pieces of equipment
such as the sander and storing materials such as sand and salt. Increasing the size of the crew
and providing for increased levels of service is also an opportunity for improvement during
emergency events. All of these improvements require ?nancial resources. For instance, a new
snow plow costs approximately$8,000, a new sander costs approximately$20,000. Ideally, we
would purchase a Ford 550 (4x4) attach a plow and mount a sander on it. This costs
approximately$1 15,000.


The City could pursue entering into an on-call agreement with a contractor such as KLB
Construction Inc. (or other) so that there services become available when needed and potentially
increasingthe speed of ?iture responses.


Additionally, the City can provide additional infonnation on the City’s limitedability to respond
to events. This would ensure better alignment between the public’s expectations and the City’s
available resources. That said, the City can continue focusing on priority routes as shown in
Attachment 1 and develop a separate map for residential priority routes. Pedestrian routes could
also be prioritized. Although this tiered priority approach would improve a common
understanding, it does not warrantee that the City will have the ability to provide the services.


Staff recommends the consideration of an Emergency Event Fund that can be used to purchase
supplies such as sand and salt and to hire a contractor. The minimum amount of this ?md should
be determined during the City’s Budget mid-biennium review based on the desired level of
service.


AGENDA ITEM #D.


2019 Winter Storm Response Update (Gina Hortillosa, Director of Public W... Page 12 of 78







CITY MANAGER RECOMMENDATION:


N/A


ATTACHMENTS:


Attachments:
- Attachment 1: Map of Snow and Ice Priority Routes
- Attachment 2: Emerald Heights I-Iomeowr1er’sAssociation letter dated March 6"‘.
- Attachment 3: Emergency Proclamation dated February 11, 2019


Respect
//A /R6‘bertS. Stowe


Interim City Manager


AGENDA ITEM #D.


2019 Winter Storm Response Update (Gina Hortillosa, Director of Public W... Page 13 of 78







Attachment 1


\v\\\Q\~\\\\
\
\‘\-.\ D
ru


‘


\\?\: ~


P!‘
D.-=


I
§


— 03- wsnor MU UAL


E: AID ROUTES


— 0- COUNTYMUTUAL
AIDROUTES


__. FIRST PRIORITY
ROUTES —


?'—" SECOND PRIORITYE
ROUTES


CITY OF
MILL CREEK


NOT TO SCALE


INCORPORATED:1983
City Hall
15728 MalnSlmal
MlllCreek.Washington 93012-1227
425-145-1891General Office: (Hnurs: 9 am - 5 pm)
47.5-745-6175Police Dapam-nent (Hours: 9 am -5 pm)


SNOW ANDICE
PRIORITY PLAN


clTYOFMlLLCREEK.COM
UP—DATED:
DEC. 8, 2009


AGENDA ITEM #D.


2019 Winter Storm Response Update (Gina Hortillosa, Director of Public W... Page 14 of 78







Attachment 2


EMERALD If" HEIGHTS


HOMEOWNERS’ "4~..,..«ASSOCIATION
of MillCreek


PO Box 13087
MillCreek.WA. 98082


emeraldassn@gmail.com
facebook.com/groups/EmeraldHeightsHomeownersAssociation/


March 6, 2018


MikeTodd , Councilmember
City of MillCreek
15728 Main St.
MillCreek, WA. 98012


Subject: Question from the Emerald Heights Board of Directors Regarding Future
Responses to Snow Events


Dear City Council Members;


The Emerald Heights Homeowners’ Association wll be holding our annual
homeowner ’ '


¢h%ard of Directorswould like to know what
to tell them regarding expections in the event of future snow storms.


As you can see from the first and second photo$¥Te‘~'Fo‘a‘d?l?7fToT1t-o?thetentrance
‘e ”' ~€:: me: «£17:-""' ~-at c _l e - l'lat=ai=i@i‘e‘l/éi=Ila'a‘ppened.in;th_e2,4.-.5


¥§§§,£h?I-Igbale...ln1' rs several issues/hardships for our
esidents. -


litmus‘


Qummus
Amuuu.


.. - CLOSED.r:.".:'::.:'.—5.


First, none of us are going to stay away from our himes ifwe jnow we can get up
the road even though it is "closed". \Nmdxa‘l1!t7¢I]3pr.e_ciatethe-f.City»o'f1Mi|llG?€6k


_gg;c_ing-u_s-1su.§emmL_.p't-arimtnal-.ac.ti9.-ssbmma
Se we.laaue.1mLo.Iasident»who.r.egu‘ - I


AGENDA ITEM #D.


2019 Winter Storm Response Update (Gina Hortillosa, Director of Public W... Page 15 of 78







@Vmrmeadetr9«pm-one'ntght'wi??*§éll(s‘8f’gfb‘6enes'ln-her
-terms»:--"'”"‘


On February 11 at 7:21 PMthe City posted on the webpage "TheCityhad secured
assistance from KLBConstruction for plowing our criticalroutes! They willprovide
twosnow plows and willbegin workat approximately 8:30 pm. tonight, witha
focus on clearing SR 527, SR 96/132nd Street SE, MillCreek Road (includingthe
roadway intoEmerald Heights), and MillCreek Blvd.” We appreciate getting our..


_.”


performed their initialplowing.The City made the statement that after all the
‘priority(pink) routes had been plowed/sandegyggCity wouiggigegimpjgyuing


garlginglots,-etc.


Really.-wo!Jl¢.ill3.e.-91$)!$i,_aJ1J?|0wlngparkinglots before the road in frontof Emerald
*


' ifleights(the red line)was cleared? ' __,.
* State/County/CitySnow Routes -‘


mm! uuuam.
011him; Feulv.


\vmaH=m-rci
snaroumynoun:


gungrshoummeme.teiIingvour.homeowriér7s.at theAprilmeeting)"


Sincerely,


Lynn Weber


EHHABoard of Directors


AGENDA ITEM #D.


2019 Winter Storm Response Update (Gina Hortillosa, Director of Public W... Page 16 of 78







Attachment 3


Proclamation


WHEREAS, the City Manager of the City of Mill Creek has determined that the local
and regional storm event is causing hazardous Conditions and significant impacts in the City of
Mill Creek; and,


WHEREAS, the winter storm event has created conditions of extreme peril to the safety


of persons and property that exist in Mill Creek; and,


WHEREAS, all available resources are committed to winter storm work; and,


WHEREAS, the City requires supplemental assistance; and,


WHEREAS, the severity of this winter event is beyond the capability of local resources.


NOW THEREFORE, the City Manager for the City of Mill Creek does hereby proclaim
the severe winter storm event constitutes an emergency as de?ned by the City of Mill Creek


Comprehensive Emergency Management Plan and necessitates the utilization of emergency


powers granted under Chapter 38.52070 RCW.


Signed this 11”‘day ofFebruary 2019


%/%/
Robert S. Stowe, Interim City Manager


WASHINGTON


AGENDA ITEM #D.


2019 Winter Storm Response Update (Gina Hortillosa, Director of Public W... Page 17 of 78







2019 Winter Storm Response 
Update


April 2, 2019


A
G


EN
D


A ITEM
 #D


.


2019 W
inter Storm


 R
esponse U


pdate (G
ina H


ortillosa, D
irector of Public W


... Page 18 of 78







2019 Winter Storm Response Update 2


• Storm magnitude


• Public Works Resources


• Public Works Estimated Cost


• Challenges


• Helpful Actions


• Lessons Learned


• Opportunity for Improvements


Agenda


A
G


EN
D


A ITEM
 #D


.


2019 W
inter Storm


 R
esponse U


pdate (G
ina H


ortillosa, D
irector of Public W


... Page 19 of 78







2019 Winter Storm


A
G


EN
D


A ITEM
 #D


.


2019 W
inter Storm


 R
esponse U


pdate (G
ina H


ortillosa, D
irector of Public W


... Page 20 of 78







2019 Winter Storm Response Update 


A
G


EN
D


A ITEM
 #D


.


2019 W
inter Storm


 R
esponse U


pdate (G
ina H


ortillosa, D
irector of Public W


... Page 21 of 78







5


• Most snow in a single month (50 years)


• One of top eight snowiest months (1891)


• Annual snow is 5 – 7 inches


Storm Statistics


2019 Winter Storm Response Update 


A
G


EN
D


A ITEM
 #D


.


2019 W
inter Storm


 R
esponse U


pdate (G
ina H


ortillosa, D
irector of Public W


... Page 22 of 78







6


• 4.7 FTEs


• 12 hour shifts


• 107 hours of OT


Public Works Resources


2019 Winter Storm Response Update 


A
G


EN
D


A ITEM
 #D


.


2019 W
inter Storm


 R
esponse U


pdate (G
ina H


ortillosa, D
irector of Public W


... Page 23 of 78







7


Public Works Resources 
(continued)


2019 Winter Storm Response Update 


A
G


EN
D


A ITEM
 #D


.


2019 W
inter Storm


 R
esponse U


pdate (G
ina H


ortillosa, D
irector of Public W


... Page 24 of 78







8


Public Works Resources 
(continued)


2019 Winter Storm Response Update 


A
G


EN
D


A ITEM
 #D


.


2019 W
inter Storm


 R
esponse U


pdate (G
ina H


ortillosa, D
irector of Public W


... Page 25 of 78







2019 Winter Storm Response Update 9


Public Works Resources 
(continued)


A
G


EN
D


A ITEM
 #D


.


2019 W
inter Storm


 R
esponse U


pdate (G
ina H


ortillosa, D
irector of Public W


... Page 26 of 78







10


Public Works Resources 
(continued)


2019 Winter Storm Response Update 


A
G


EN
D


A ITEM
 #D


.


2019 W
inter Storm


 R
esponse U


pdate (G
ina H


ortillosa, D
irector of Public W


... Page 27 of 78







11


Public Works Resources 
(continued)


2019 Winter Storm Response Update 


A
G


EN
D


A ITEM
 #D


.


2019 W
inter Storm


 R
esponse U


pdate (G
ina H


ortillosa, D
irector of Public W


... Page 28 of 78







2019 Winter Storm Response Update 12


Public Works Resources 
(continued)


A
G


EN
D


A ITEM
 #D


.


2019 W
inter Storm


 R
esponse U


pdate (G
ina H


ortillosa, D
irector of Public W


... Page 29 of 78







13


Public Works Resources 
(continued)


2019 Winter Storm Response Update 


A
G


EN
D


A ITEM
 #D


.


2019 W
inter Storm


 R
esponse U


pdate (G
ina H


ortillosa, D
irector of Public W


... Page 30 of 78







2019 Winter Storm Response Update 14


Public Works Resources 
(continued)


A
G


EN
D


A ITEM
 #D


.


2019 W
inter Storm


 R
esponse U


pdate (G
ina H


ortillosa, D
irector of Public W


... Page 31 of 78







15


Public Works Estimated 
Cost


2019 Winter Storm Response Update 


A
G


EN
D


A ITEM
 #D


.


2019 W
inter Storm


 R
esponse U


pdate (G
ina H


ortillosa, D
irector of Public W


... Page 32 of 78







16


Public Works Estimated 
Cost


• Some HOAs took independent action


• 77 lane miles of residential


o Mobilization ($1,000-$2,000 per 
equip.)


o $150 - $205 per equip.


• Plowing residential: $50,000 - $100,000


2019 Winter Storm Response Update 


A
G


EN
D


A ITEM
 #D


.


2019 W
inter Storm


 R
esponse U


pdate (G
ina H


ortillosa, D
irector of Public W


... Page 33 of 78







17


• Regional shortage (salt)


• Diesel fuel up location


• 2002 Sander broke (Feb. 4th)


• Equipment 


o Plow/sand operations


o Limited 4x4 capabilities


• Snow plow sheared (Feb. 15th)


Public Works Challenges


2019 Winter Storm Response Update 


A
G


EN
D


A ITEM
 #D


.


2019 W
inter Storm


 R
esponse U


pdate (G
ina H


ortillosa, D
irector of Public W


... Page 34 of 78







18


Public Works Challenges 
(continued)


• Waste Management residential services


• Safety


o Two accidents (crew)


o No “buddy system”


2019 Winter Storm Response Update 


A
G


EN
D


A ITEM
 #D


.


2019 W
inter Storm


 R
esponse U


pdate (G
ina H


ortillosa, D
irector of Public W


... Page 35 of 78







19


Public Works Challenges 
(continued)


2019 Winter Storm Response Update 


A
G


EN
D


A ITEM
 #D


.


2019 W
inter Storm


 R
esponse U


pdate (G
ina H


ortillosa, D
irector of Public W


... Page 36 of 78







20


Public Works Challenges 
(continued)


2019 Winter Storm Response Update 


A
G


EN
D


A ITEM
 #D


.


2019 W
inter Storm


 R
esponse U


pdate (G
ina H


ortillosa, D
irector of Public W


... Page 37 of 78







Put the Title of Your Presentation Down Here 21


Public Works Challenges 
(continued)


A
G


EN
D


A ITEM
 #D


.


2019 W
inter Storm


 R
esponse U


pdate (G
ina H


ortillosa, D
irector of Public W


... Page 38 of 78







2019 Winter Storm Response Update 22


Public Works Challenges 
(continued)


A
G


EN
D


A ITEM
 #D


.


2019 W
inter Storm


 R
esponse U


pdate (G
ina H


ortillosa, D
irector of Public W


... Page 39 of 78







23


Public Works Challenges 
(continued)


• Misalignment of resident expectations 
and available resources


o November 2017 (beaver dam breach)


o December 2017 (sinkhole)


o February 2019 (winter storm)


2019 Winter Storm Response Update 


A
G


EN
D


A ITEM
 #D


.


2019 W
inter Storm


 R
esponse U


pdate (G
ina H


ortillosa, D
irector of Public W


... Page 40 of 78







24


Public Works Helpful 
Actions 
• Overall sense of awareness


o Communication (crew, City, County)


o Skills


• Securing resources prior to storm


• City Manager Emergency Proclamation


• No widespread power outages


2019 Winter Storm Response Update 


A
G


EN
D


A ITEM
 #D


.


2019 W
inter Storm


 R
esponse U


pdate (G
ina H


ortillosa, D
irector of Public W


... Page 41 of 78







25


• Diesel vehicle fuel-up


• Barricade signs at Emerald Heights


• Use of radios vs. cell phone


Lessons Learned


2019 Winter Storm Response Update 


A
G


EN
D


A ITEM
 #D


.


2019 W
inter Storm


 R
esponse U


pdate (G
ina H


ortillosa, D
irector of Public W


... Page 42 of 78







26


• On-call agreement


• Information: Expectations and Available 
Resources


• Equipment backup


• Increasing the crew size


• Emergency Event Fund


Opportunities for Improvement


2019 Winter Storm Response Update 


A
G


EN
D


A ITEM
 #D


.


2019 W
inter Storm


 R
esponse U


pdate (G
ina H


ortillosa, D
irector of Public W


... Page 43 of 78







Gina M. Hortillosa, PE PMP
Director of Public Works and Development 
Services


Nathan Beagle
Public Works Supervisor


27


2019 Winter Storm 
Response


2019 Winter Storm Response Update 


A
G


EN
D


A ITEM
 #D


.


2019 W
inter Storm


 R
esponse U


pdate (G
ina H


ortillosa, D
irector of Public W


... Page 44 of 78







December 4, 2018 REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES


MINUTES
City Council Regular Meeting
6:00 PM - Tuesday, December 4, 2018
Council Chambers, 15728 Main Street, Mill Creek, WA 98012
 


 


Minutes are the official record of Mill Creek City Council meetings. Minutes document 
action taken at the council meeting, not what was said at the council meeting.


A recording of this City Council meeting can be found here. 
The agenda packet for this City Council meeting can be found here.


CALL TO ORDER
Mayor Pruitt called the meeting of the Mill Creek City Council to order at 6:00 p.m. and 
led the Pledge of Allegiance.


PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE


ROLL CALL
Councilmembers Present:
Pam Pruitt, Mayor
Brian Holtzclaw, Mayor Pro Tem
Vince Cavaleri, Councilmember
Mike Todd, Councilmember
Mark Bond, Councilmember
Jared Mead, Councilmember
John Steckler, Councilmember


Councilmembers Absent:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


AUDIENCE COMMUNICATION
A. Public comment on items on or not on the agenda


 
Wil Nelson, a Mill Creek resident, thanked Public Works for putting deicer on the 
roads. Mr. Nelson asked that no changes be made to the agenda after it is posted on 
Friday's. 
 
Herbie Martin, a Mill Creek resident, would like to see a diverse pool of candidates for 
vacant Council Position No. 2. 
 
Jon Ramer, a member of Mill Creek AMVETS Post 2018, requested the gift of an 
American flag that has either flown outside City Hall or at the Veterans Monument for 
the Post's memorabilia collection.  


OLD BUSINESS
B. City Manager Recruitment Schedule and Process Discussion


 
Interim City Manager Bob Stowe asked Council for direction regarding the City 


AGENDA ITEM #E.


City Council Meeting Minutes of December 4, 2018 Page 45 of 78



https://www.cityofmillcreek.com/UserFiles/Servers/Server_9100852/File/Agendas%20and%20Minutes/Audio%20Recordings/2018/Audio%2012-4-18.mp3

https://millcreek.civicweb.net/filepro/documents/26820





December 4, 2018 REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES


Manager recruitment process, schedule, and stakeholder meetings. City Manager 
Stowe introduced Peckham & McKenney consultant, Drew Gorgey, who answered 
questions from Council.   
 
Council engaged in discussion. Council scheduled one-on-one meetings with Mr. 
Gorgey on December 10 to discuss the candidate profile. Mr. Gorgey will provide 
Council with a letter detailing next steps and a tentative schedule by the end of the 
week. 


Councilmember Todd made a motion to extend the Interim City Manager's 
contract for nine months. Mayor Pro Tem Holtzclaw seconded the motion. The 
motion failed 2-5-0.  


NEW BUSINESS
C. 2017-2018 Budget Amendments 


 
Interim City Manager Bob Stowe explained why budget amendments are necessary 
and reviewed the increased revenue and proposed amendments; noting modifications 
to a variety of funds as noted in Exhibit A attached to the proposed ordinance. 


Councilmember Cavaleri made a motion to approve Ordinance 2018-841, AN 
ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MILL CREEK, WASHINGTON, RELATING TO THE 
2017-2018 BUDGET; AMENDING THE 2017-2018 BUDGET, TO ADJUST 
REVENUES AND APPROPRIATIONS FOR SPECIFIED FUNDS; ORIGINALLY 
ADOPTED BY ORDINANCE 2016-810. Councilmember Todd seconded the 
motion. The motion passed unanimously.  


D. Adoption of the 2019-2020 Biennial Budget


Interim City Manager Bob Stowe reviewed modifications made to the proposed 2019-
2020 budget based on Council's direction since the initial presentation in November. 
Key modifications include: the new surface water fee with associated expense, 
reallocation of staff hours related to the Supervising Engineer position, and carryover 
of capital project elements related to 35th Ave reconstruction and Mill Creek Sports 
Park turf & light replacement. 
 
City Manager Stowe provided information requested previously by Council relating to 
the funding request by the Mill Creek Senior Center. Based on discussion, City 
Manager Stowe will have the final document reflect a one-time payment of $2,500 to 
the senior center to be paid by invoice in 2019. Mayor Pruitt requested a community 
funding discussion be on an agenda in January. 
 
City Manager Stowe reviewed missed opportunities in the proposed budget including 
the funding of three key staff positions and how this will affect the City's level of 
service.
 
Snohomish County Councilmember Terry Ryan announced that a $150,000 grant will 
be awarded to the City for maintenance and repairs at Heron Park. 


AGENDA ITEM #E.


City Council Meeting Minutes of December 4, 2018 Page 46 of 78







December 4, 2018 REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES


Councilmember Cavaleri made a motion authorizing a budget allocation of 
$2,500 from the Council Contingency Fund to the Northshore Senior Center. 
Councilmember Bond seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously.  


Councilmember Steckler made a motion to approve approve Ordinance 2018-
842, AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MILL CREEK, WASHINGTON, ADOPTING 
BUDGETED REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES FOR THE FISCAL BIENNIUM 
COMMENCING JANUARY 1, 2019. Councilmember Cavaleri seconded the 
motion. The motion passed unanimously.  


Councilmember Todd made a motion to amend the budget document by 
removing Appendix I. Mayor Pro Tem Holtzclaw seconded the motion. The 
motion passed unanimously.  


E. Adoption of 2019 Legislative Priorities


Interim City Manager Bob Stowe explained the importance of the document and 
reviewed the proposed 2019 legislative priorities that were developed by staff based 
on recommendations provided by the Association of Washington Cities (AWC).


Councilmember Todd made a motion to adopt the 2019 Legislative Priorities. 
Councilmember Bond seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously.  


STUDY SESSION
F. Personnel Policies 


Interim City Manager Bob Stowe, Director of Human Resources Laura Orlando, and 
Human Resources Manager Charlie Eikenberry led a study session introducing 
proposed updates to the Personnel Policies and Personnel Administration Manual. 
The Policy update also authorizes the City Manager to approve administrative 
procedures and guidelines through the Personnel Administration Manual that are
necessary and appropriate for good governance, human resource management and 
required by state or federal laws. 
 
Council requests further discussion related to compensation strategies after the new 
year. 


At 8:29 p.m. Mayor Pro Tem Holtzclaw made a motion to extend the meeting up 
to 9:00 p.m. Councilmember Todd seconded the motion. The motion passed 
unanimously.  


REPORTS
G. Mayor/Council


 
Mayor Pruitt reported that she attended the tree lighting ceremony, which had the 
largest turnout in City history. 
 
Mayor Pruitt reported that she was recently appointed as an alternate to the 
Association of Washington Cities Enhanced 911 Advisory Committee for western 


AGENDA ITEM #E.


City Council Meeting Minutes of December 4, 2018 Page 47 of 78







December 4, 2018 REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES


cities and gave a brief overview of the duties of the Committee. 
 
Councilmember Todd reported that Community Transit will hold inaugural events for 
the Swift Green Line in late March. Councilmember Todd reported that the project is 
under budget and ahead of schedule.


H. City Manager
 Council Planning Schedule 


AUDIENCE COMMUNICATION
I. Public comment on items on or not on the agenda


 
Wil Nelson, a Mill Creek resident, would like Council to use a step incentive process 
for employees instead of annual performance reviews. 
 
Barbara Heidel, a Mill Creek resident, thanked Council for the $2,500 payment to 
senior center. 


ADJOURNMENT
With no objection, Mayor Pruitt adjourned the meeting at 8:40 p.m.


Pam Pruitt, Mayor


Gina Pfister, Acting City Clerk


AGENDA ITEM #E.


City Council Meeting Minutes of December 4, 2018 Page 48 of 78







 


Tentative Council Meeting Agendas 
Subject to change without notice 


Last updated: March 28, 2019 
 


 


April 9, 2019 


(Agenda Summary due April 1) 


 Proclamation: National Volunteer Week 


 Presentation / Recognition of City Volunteers 


 City Manager Contract Authority and 


Procurement Procedures  


 Purchase of PW Bucket Truck  


 Study Session: Contract for Services – Mill 


Creek Blvd Corridor Study  


 Study Session: Updates to the Governance 


Manual  


 Study Session: Dobson/Remillard Property 


 Study Session: Financial Management Policies 


 


April 23, 2019 


(Agenda Summary due April 10) 


 Presentation: Community Transit 


 Planning Commission Appointments 


 Contract for Services – Mill Creek Blvd 


Corridor Study  


 Study Session: Compensation Strategies 


 Report: Memorial Day Plans 


 


May 7, 2019 


(Agenda Summary due April 29) 


 Proclamation: Public Works Month 


 


May 14, 2019 


(Agenda Summary due May 6) 


 Check Presentation to City’s AWC Scholarship 


Nominee 


 Surface Water F Failures – Construction 


Contract Award  


 


May 28, 2019 


(Agenda Summary due May 20) 


 Hawk/SR 96 – Consideration of Speed 


 


June 4, 2019 


(Agenda Summary due May 27) 


 Presentation: Youth Advisory Board Year-End 


Recognition 


 Presentation: Waste Management  


 


APRIL 
Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 


  1  2  3  4  5  6  


       


7  8  9  10  11  12  13  


       


14  15  16  17  18  19  20  


       


21  22  23  24  25  26  27  


       


28  29  30          


       


MAY 
Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 


      1  2  3  4  


       


5  6  7  8  9  10  11  


       


12  13  14  15  16  17  18  


       


19  20  21  22  23  24  25  


       


26  27  28  29  30  31    


       


JUNE 
Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 


            1  


       


2  3  4  5  6  7  8  


       


9  10  11  12  13  14  15  


       


16  17  18  19  20  21  22  


       


23 30 24  25  26  27  28  29  


       


Council 


Council 


Council 


Council 


Council 


Council 


Council 


Council 


Council 


AGENDA ITEM #G.


City Manager Council Planning Schedule Page 49 of 78







 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Possible Work Session Topics for Discussion 


 Business signs  


 MCCA storm water discussions  


 Utility Project Management  


 Hotel/Motel Theater Tax  


 Mill Creek Blvd Vision  


 ST3 Stations 


 5G Presentation 


 Legislative Retreat 


 Gold Star Memorial 


 Dobson Remillard Property 


 Fleet Program 


 Bike Lanes 


 Community Funding Criteria and Source of 


Funds 


 Surface Water System Study Group 


JULY 
Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 


  1  2  3  4  5  6  


       


7  8  9  10  11  12  13  


       


14  15  16  17  18  19  20  


       


21  22  23  24  25  26  27  


       


28  29  30  31        


       


AUGUST 
Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 


        1  2  3  


       


4  5  6  7  8  9  10  


       


11  12  13  14  15  16  17  


       


18  19  20  21  22  23  24  


       


25  26  27  28  29  30  31  


       


SEPTEMBER 
Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 


1  2  3  4  5  6  7  


       


8  9  10  11  12  13  14  


       


15  16  17  18  19  20  21  


       


22  23  24  25  26  27  28  


       


29  30            


       


Council 


Council 


Council 


AGENDA ITEM #G.


City Manager Council Planning Schedule Page 50 of 78







“ 15728 MainStreet, MillCreek, WA 98012


' Administration425-745-1891
CITY or /-—.a_,-/


N. /-V-" Police425-745-5175M111C1‘ee1< AllOther Departments 425-551-7254
w A s H I N G T 0 N


MEMORANDUM


April2, 2019


TO: City Council


THROUGH: Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager


FROM: Gregory Elwin,Chief of Police


SUBJECT: Domestic Violence Coordinator Contractual Services


ENCL: Attachment A — Contract for Services — Bridge Coordination Services LLC
Attachment B — Bridge Coordination Services LLC - Ca/cu/at/on Sheet and


Hour/y Recommendation
Attachment C — Victim Coordinator Scope of Responsibility
Attachment D - Timeline for service implementation
Attachment E - CouncilAgenda Summary — November 13, 2018
Attachment F — Interlocal Agreement — Edmonds DVCoordinator


The City of MillCreek willbe entering into a contract for services with Bridge Coordination
Services LLC(Bridge) for domestic violence and victim coordination services effective May 1,
2019. The need for seeking services from Bridge arises from the pending dissolution of the
city's current Interlocal agreement with the City of Edmonds for these same services. The City
Council was advised in November 2018 that the City of Edmonds intended to terminate the ILA
during 2019 in order to conserve their resources and reallocate the staff associated with serving
MillCreek to the needs that exist in their own city. The demands on the Edmonds DV
Coordinator in both cities exceed that individua|’s capacity. Edmonds staff pledged at that time
to assist MillCreek with locating a suitable replacement service before any discussionon
termination was held and asked the police department to advise when a suitable replacement
had been located.


During the ?rst quarter of 2019, police department staff explored options for a service provider.
Bridge was identi?ed as a potential service provider and a check of their references with the
City of Mukilteo and the City of Arlington was performed; representatives from both police
departments reported a high level of satisfaction with the service provided, and in fact the City
of Mukilteois considering expanding services due to their positive experience. Additionally,the
current Edmonds Police Department DVCoordinator has worked extensively with Bridge
personnel and reports a high level of satisfaction with the working relationship. No other
private contract could be identi?ed and allied cities are not in positions to be able to provide
service similar to what the city has received from Edmonds for many years.


cityofrni|lcreek.com Facebook: Facebook.com/Mil|CreekWA Twitter: @MillCreekWA Instagram: @CityofMi|lCreek


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Staff Contract for Domestic Violence Services Page 51 of 78







/1


.P-§-.9.,3.1...?


A request for additional information was submitted to Bridge, to include an estimation of work
necessaryto meet the needs of domestic violence investigations in MillCreek as well as a cost
associated with those services. PoliceDepartment staff obtained domestic violence
investigation and call for service data from the records management system and provided that
information to Bridge staff. Based on the historicalworkloadof MillCreek, Bridge staff
projected future workload and applied their time standards to that work, arriving at what is
reasonably expected as necessary to meet the needs of the department. That evaluation
indicates that the police department willneed an average of nine (9) hours per week of DV
Coordinationservices over the balance of 2019. Thiscompares to the historicalaverage of six
(6) hours of service the department has been receiving from Edmonds and supports staff's
assertion that the city was being underserved by the Edmonds DVCoordinatordue to workload
challenges. Staff concurs with the nine (9) hours per week assessment. The data may be seen
in AttachmentB.


In addition to the traditional DVcoordinationservices the City has received from Edmonds,
expanded victim services and better training and coordinationwith our of?cers is an element of
the contract. The Coordinator provided to the City by Bridgewillbe dedicated solely to the
City. This level of relationship willallowall of our domestic violence response and investigation
services to improve, allowing the department to provide more responsive service to the
community. This contract allows the department to add this level of service without the need
to recruit and hire a part-time employee to ?ll the need; a recruitment that we could not
reasonably expect to produce valuable results.


Bridgehas provided to the City a proposed timelinefor implementation and that is includedas
Attachment C. Based on this timeline,city staff anticipates executing this contract to enable
Bridge staff to be on site during the ?rst week of May 2019. Consequently, the City of
Edmonds was noti?ed in writing (email) on February 28”‘,2019 of MillCreek's intent to
terminate the ILAeffective April30, 2019. Section 7 of the ILAwith Edmonds requires a 90 day
notice of termination, but in consideration of Edmonds’needs, they are in agreement with the
termination date as noted in an email dated March5”‘,2019.


During the May—Ju|ytimeframe, Bridge staff willembed with police department staff and the
organizationaland operational work willcommence. In conjunction with this foundational work,
case workwillcontinue at the same or higher levelof service as has been provided by
Edmonds. Additionally, the Edmonds DVCoordinator, supported by Edmonds PoliceCommand
Staff, has pledged to assist in the transition as necessary, even after dissolution of the
Interlocal agreement.


The cost for services associated with this contract is $22,500.00 per year. For 2019, and when
prorated based on a May 1, 2019 start date, the projected expense for 2019 willbe $15,500.00.
For the biennium, the total cost of the contract willbe $38,000.00.


The current biennium budget includes$21,000 allocatedto the city's ILAwith Edmonds. The
City may need a budget amendment to cover the increased cost. Councilshould further be


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Staff Contract for Domestic Violence Services Page 52 of 78







advised to expect a budget proposal in an amount of approximately$43,000.00 (plus
appropriate adjustments) in the 2021-2022 biennium.


Thetotal value of this contract forservices is within the authority of the City Manager to
execute. This report is furnished to provide the Councilwith the background and details
associated with the change in service providers as wellas alert the Councilthat this contract will
necessitate a budget amendment in the current bienniumand an increased cost for future
bienniums.


'
'


1 2-
.


2 2 .2 V7


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Staff Contract for Domestic Violence Services Page 53 of 78







Attachment A


PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT
FOR DOMESTIC VIOLENCE COORDINATION SERVICES


THIS PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT (Agreement) is made’and entered into in
duplicate this 27"‘day of February, 2019 by and between the City of Mill Creek, a Washington
municipal corporation, hereina?er referred to as "CITY". and Bridge Coordination Services,
LLC, hereinafter referred to as "SERVICE PROVIDER." The CITY and SERVICE PROVIDER
are each a Party and collectively the Parties to this Agreement.


RECITALS


WHEREAS, the CITY desires to have domestic violence coordination services and/or
tasks performed as set forth below requiring specialized skills and other supportive capabilities;
and


WHEREAS, suf?cient CITY resources are not available to provide such services; and


WHEREAS, the SERVICE PROVIDER represents that the SERVICE PROVIDER is
quali?ed and possesses suf?cient skills and the necessary capabilities, including technical and
professional expertise, where required, to perform the services and/or tasks set forth in this
Agreement; and


WHEREAS, the CITY desires to contract with the SERVICE PROVIDER, and
SERVICE PROVIDER desires to perform the servicesneeded by the CITY.


NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the terms, conditions, covenants, and
performance containedherein, the Parties agree as follows:


1. Scope of Services.


The SERVICE PROVIDER shall perform such services and accomplish such tasks, including the
furnishing of all materialsand equipmentnecessary for full performance thereof, as are identi?ed
and designated as SERVICE PROVIDER responsibilities throughout this Agreement, the Scope
of Services attached as Exhibit A, and as detailed herein (collectively the Services). Services
will begin May 1, 2019 and will be completed December 31, 2019. Hours of operation will be
?exed to meet the needs of the City and the Services, not to exceed 315 Annual Service hours /
(315 total Service Hours) for the full term of the Agreement. The Services required are
designated as Domestic Violence Coordinator.


2. Term.


2.1 The Services shall begin on May 1, 2019, and shall be completed no later than
December 31, 2019 unless sooner terminatedaccording to the provisions herein.


DVC PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT - Page 1 of 7
{SXMI898607.DOCX; l/05739.000009/ }


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Staff Contract for Domestic Violence Services Page 54 of 78







2.2
A


The Services shall automatically renew on the terms stated herein at a service
level of 468 Service Hours (9 hours per week) commencing January 1, 2020 and will be
completed December 31, 2020, provided the Parties so agree in writing on or before November
1, 2019 and further provided that the Agreement has not been terminated on or before December
31, 2019.


3. Compensation and Pament.


3.1 Payments for the Services shallbe made following the performance of such
Services, unless otherwise permittedby law and approved in writing by the CITY.


3.2 No payment shall be made for any service rendered by the SERVICE PROVIDER
except for the Services identified and set forth in this Agreement.


3.3 The CITY shall pay the SERVICE PROVIDER for Services performed under this
Agreement as follows: SERVICE PROVIDER shall submit monthly invoices detailing work
performed and expenses for whichreimbursement is sought. CITY shall review and must
approve all invoices before payment is issued. No payment is owed for Services which the
CITY disputes. Payment shall occur in the ordinary manner used by CITY to process payments,
and CITY will endeavor to complete payment within thirty (30) days of receipt and approval of
an invoice. The SERVICE PROVIDER shall be paid an hourly rate of $48.07 per hour for
Services provided as described in this Agreement subject to approval of the City Manager. The
total compensation for the SERVICE PROVIDER for 2019 shall not exceed $15,150.00 from
May 1, 2019 to December 31, 2019.


3.4 In the event Services continue to be performed into 2020 pursuant to Section 2.2 above,
the total compensation for the SERVICE PROVIDER for 2020 shall not exceed $22,500.00 from
January 1, 2020 to December 31, 2020.


4. Reports And Inspections.


4.1 The SERVICE PROVIDER at such times and in such forms as the CITY may
require, shall furnish to the CITY such statements, records, reports, data, and information as the
CITY may request pertaining to matters covered by this Agreement.


4.2 The SERVICE PROVIDER shall at any time during normal business hours and as
often as the CITY or State Auditor may deem necessary, make available for examination all of
its records and data with respect to all matterscovered, directly or indirectly, by this Agreement
and shall permit the CITY or its designated authorized representative to audit and inspect other
data relating to all matters covered by this Agreement. The CITY shall receive a copy of all
audit reports made by the agency or firm as to the SERVICE PROVIDER'S activities. The
CITY may, at its discretion, conduct an audit at its expense, using its own or outside auditors, of
the SERVICE PROVIDER'S activities which relate, directly or indirectly, to this Agreement.
5. Independent Contractor Relationship. '


DVC PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT -- Page 2 of 7
{SXM1898607.DOCX;l/05739.000009/}


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Staff Contract for Domestic Violence Services Page 55 of 78







5.1 The Parties intend that an independent SERVICE PROVIDER/CITY contractor
relationshipwill be created by this Agreement. Because the CITY is interestedprimarily in the
results to be achieved, subject to paragraphsherein the implementationof the Services will lie
solely with the discretion of the SERVICE PROVIDER. No agent, employee, servant or
representative of the SERVICE PROVIDER shall be deemed to be an employee, agent, servant
or representativeof the CITY for any purpose, and the employees of the SERVICE PROVIDER
are not entitled to any of the benefits the CITY provides for its employees. The SERVICE
PROVIDER will be solely and entirely responsible for its acts and for the acts of its agents,
employees, servants, subcontractors and representatives during the performance of this
Agreement.


5.2 In the performance of the Services, the SERVICE PROVIDER is an independent
contractor with the authority to control and direct the performance of the details of the work,
however, the results of the work contemplated herein must meet the approval of the CITY and
shall be subject to the CITY'S general rights of inspectionand review to secure the satisfactory
completion thereof. '


6. Service Provider Employees/Agents


The CITY may at its sole discretion requirethe SERVICE PROVIDER to remove any employee,
agent, subcontractor, representative or servant from employment on this Project. The SERVICE
PROVIDER may however employ that (those) individual(s) on other non-CITY related projects.


7. Hold Harmless/Indemni?cation.


7.1 SERVICE PROVIDER shall defend, indemnify and hold the City, its officers,
officials, employees and volunteers harmless from any and all claims, injuries, damages, losses
or suits including attorney fees, arising out of or resulting from the acts, errors or omissions of
the SERVICE PROVIDER in performance of this Agreement, except for injuries and damages
caused by the sole negligence of the City.


7.2 No liability shall attach to the CITY by reason of entering into this Agreement
except as expressly provided herein.


8. Treatment of Assets.


Title to all property furnished by the CITY shall remain in the name of the CITY and the CITY
shall become the owner of all work product and other documents, if any, prepared by the
SERVICE PROVIDER pursuant to this Agreement.


9.. Compliancewith Laws.


9.1 The SERVICE PROVIDER, in the performance of this Agreement, shall comply


DVC PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT -- Page 3 of 7
{SXMI898607.DOCX;1/05739.000009/}


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Staff Contract for Domestic Violence Services Page 56 of 78







with all applicable federal, state and local laws and ordinances, including regulations‘ for
licensing, certi?cation and operation of facilities, programs and accreditation, and licensing of
individuals, and any other standardsor criteriaas described in this Agreement to assure quality
of the Services.


9.2 The SERVICE PROVIDER speci?cally agrees to pay any applicable business and
occupation (B & 0) taxes which may be due on account of this Agreement. ‘


10. Nondiscrimination.


10.1 The CITY is an equal opportunityemployer.


10.2 Nondiscrimination in Employment.In the performance of this Agreement,the
SERVICE PROVIDER will not discriminateagainstany employee or applicant for employment
on the grounds of race, creed, color, national origin, sex, marital status, age or the presence of
any sensory, mental or physical handicap;providedthat the prohibition against discrimination in


‘ employment because of handicap shall not apply if the particulardisability prevents the proper
performance of the particular worker involved in accordance with applicable law. The
SERVICE PROVIDER shall ensure that applicantsare employed, and that employees are treated
during employment, without discrimination because of their race, creed, color, national origin,
sex, marital status, age or the presence of any sensory, mental or physical handicap. Such action
shall include, but not be limited to: employment, upgrading, demotion or transfers, recruitment
or recruitment advertising, layoff or termination, rates of pay or other forms of compensation,
and programs for training includingapprenticeships.The SERVICE PROVIDER shall take such
action with respect to this Agreement as may be required to ensure full compliance with local,
state and federal laws prohibiting discriminationinemployment.


10.3 Nondiscrimination in Services. The SERVICE PROVIDER will not discriminate
against any recipient of any Services perfonned pursuant to, or bene?ts provided for, in this
Agreement on the grounds of race, creed, color, national origin,sex, marital status, age or the
presence of any sensory, mental or physical handicap.


10.4 If any assignment and/or subcontracting has been authorized by the CITY, said
assignment or subcontract shall include appropriate safeguards against discrimination. The
SERVICE PROVIDER shall take such action as may be required to ensure full compliance with '


the provisions in this Section 10.


11. AssigimentlSubcontracting.


11.1 ‘ The SERVICE PROVIDER shall not assign its performance under this
Agreement or any portion of this Agreement without the written consent of the CITY, and it is
further agreed that said consent must be sought in writing by the SERVICE PROVIDER not less
than thirty (30) days prior to the date of any proposed assignment. The CITY reserves the right
to reject without cause any such assignment.


DVC PROFESSIONALSERVICES AGREEMENT -- Page 4 of 7
{SXM1898607.DOCX;1/05739.000009/}


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Staff Contract for Domestic Violence Services Page 57 of 78







11.2 Any work or Services assigned hereunder shall be subject to each provision of
this Agreement and proper bidding procedures where applicableas set forth in local, state and/or
federal statutes, ordinances and guidelines.


11.3 Any technical/professionalservice subcontract not listed in this Agreement, must
have express advance written approval by the CITY.


12. Changes.


Either party may request changes to the Scope of Services and performance to be provided
hereunder, however, no change or addition to this Agreement shall be valid or binding upon
either Party unless such change or addition be in writing and signed by both Parties. Such
amendments shall be attached to and made part of this Agreement.


13. Maintenance and Inspectionof Records.


13.1 The SERVICE PROVIDER shall maintain books, records and documents, which
suf?ciently and properly re?ect all direct and indirect costs related to the performance of this
Agreement and shall maintain such accounting procedures and practices as may be necessary to
assure proper accounting of all funds paid pursuant to this Agreement. These records shall be
subject at all reasonable times to inspection, review, or audit, by the CITY, its authorized
representative, the State Auditor, or other governmental officials authorized by law to monitor
this Agreement.


13.2 The SERVICE PROVIDER shall retain all books, records, documents and other
material relevant to this Agreement, for six (6) years after its expiration. The SERVICE
PROVIDER agrees that the CITY or its designee shall have full access and right to examine any
of said materials at all reasonable times during said period.


14. Other Provisions.


If changes in state law necessitate that Services hereunder be expanded, the Parties shall
negotiate an appropriate amendment. If after thirty (30) days of negotiation, agreement cannot


be reached, this Agreement may be terminated by the City no sooner than thirty (30) days
thereafter.


15. Termination.


15.1 Termination for Convenience. The CITY may terminate this Agreement, in
whole or in part, at any time, by at least forty-?ve (45) days written notice to the SERVICE
PROVIDER.


15.2 Termination for Cause. If the SERVICE PROVIDER fails to perform in the


DVC PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT -- Page 5 of 7
{SXM1898607.DOCX;ll05739.000009/}


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Staff Contract for Domestic Violence Services Page 58 of 78







manner called for in this Agreement, or if the SERVICE PROVIDER fails to comply with any
other provisions of the Agreement and fails to correct such noncompliance within thirty (30)
days written notice thereof, the CITY may tenninate this Agreement for cause. Termination
shall be effected by serving a notice of termination on the SERVICE PROVIDER setting forth
the manner in which the SERVICE PROVIDER is in default and shall be effective upon receipt.
The SERVICE PROVIDER will only be paid for Services performed in accordance with the
terms and manner of performanceset forth in this Agreement.


16. Notice.


Notice required or provided for in this Agreement shall be made or sent by certi?ed mail,
personal delivery, or overnight delivery service to the addresses designated for the Parties on the
last page of this Agreement, and shall be effective upon delivery or receipt.


17. Attorneys Fees and Costs.


If any legal proceeding is brought for the enforcement of this Agreement, or because of a
dispute, breach, default, or misrepresentation in connection with any of the provisions of this
Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover from the other party, in addition to
any other relief to which such party may be entitled, reasonable attorney's fees and other costs
incurred in that action or proceeding.


18. Jurisdiction and Venue.


18.1 This Agreement has been and shall be construed as having been made and
delivered within the State of Washington, and it is agreed by each Party that this Agreement shall
be governed by laws of the State of Washington, both as to interpretationand performance.


18.2 Any action of law, suit in equity, or judicial proceeding for the enforcement of
this Agreement or any provisions thereof shall be instituted and maintained only in the superior
court for SnohomishCounty, Washington.


19. Severability.


19.1 If, for any reason, any part, term or provision of this Agreement is held by a court
of the United States to be illegal, void or unenforceable, the validity of the remaining provisions
shall not be affected, and the rights and obligations of the Parties shall be construed and enforced
as if the Agreement did not contain the particularprovision held to be invalid.


19.2 If it should appear to the Parties that any provision hereof is in con?ict with any
statutory provision of the State of Washington, said provision which may con?ict therewith shall
be deemed inoperative and null and void insofar as it may be in con?ict therewith, and shall be
deemed modified to conform to such statutory provisions.
20. Entire Agreement.


DVC PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT -- Page 6 of 7
{SXM1898607.DOCX;1/05739.000009/}


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Staff Contract for Domestic Violence Services Page 59 of 78







The Parties agree that this Agreement is the complete expression of the terms hereto and any oral
representations or understandings not incorporated herein are excluded. Further, any
modi?cation of this Agreement shall be in writing and signed by both Parties. Failure to comply
with any of the provisions stated herein shall constitute material breach of the Agreement and
cause for termination. Both Parties recognize time is of the essence in the performance of the
provisions of this Agreement. It is also agreed by the Parties that the forgiveness of the
nonperfonnance of any provision of this Agreement does not constitute a waiver of the
provisionsof this Agreement.


21. General Terms


21.1 Authority. Each Party warrants that it has taken all steps necessary to approve
this Agreement that that the Party has duly authorizedthe signature of its representativebelow.


21.2 There are no third party beneficiariesof or to this Agreement.


IN WITNESS WHEREOF the Parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed
the day and year first hereinabovewritten.


CITY: SERVICE PROVIDER:


City of Mill Creek Bridge CoordinationServices, LLC
ATTN: Robert S Stowe, Interim ATTN: Tiffany Krusey Kelly
City Manager P.O Box 2632
15728 Main Street Stanwood, WA 98292
Mill Creek WA 98012


Robert S Stowe Tiffany Krusey Kelly


APPROVED AS TO FORM


Scott M. Missall, City Attorney


DVC PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT -- Page 7 of 7
{SXMI898607.DOCX;I/05739000009! }


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Staff Contract for Domestic Violence Services Page 60 of 78







Calculation sheet and hourly recommendation:


MILLCREEK,WA - 2018


Bridge Coordination Services, LLC
P.O. BOX 2632


Stanwood, WA 98292


Cell (253) 226-0266


Bridgecoordir\ationServices@gmai|.com


Attachment B


TYPEOF CASE ANNUALCASES MULTIPLIER TOTALANNUAL


HOURS


DOMESTICVIOLENCE 86 4 344


CASE


VERBALDOMESTIC 80 1 80


CASE


TYPEOF CASE ANNUALHOURS DIVIDEDBYWEEKS TOTALWEEKLY


OF SERVICE HOURS


DOMESTICVIOLENCE 344 52 6.61


CASE


VERBALDOMESTIC 80 52 1.53


CASE
"‘ If the case average Is not a whole number, the hours are rounded up to the next whole numher."”"


Based on the numbers provided from 2018, the total weekly hours needed for a victim coordinator


would equate to 8.14 hours per week. As discussed, the 2018 verbal case load numbers may not


accurately reflect the actual call volume (due in part to Officer re-coding).


The MillCreek Police Department would greatly benefit from a Victim Coordinator position at 9 hours


per week, taking into consideration the variables in reporting.


It is imperative to evaluate the hours as well as the volume of DVcases the Victim Coordinator willhave


worked on in 2019 at the close of the 3”’quarter to determine what additional hours are needed, if any,


and re-adjust the hours to reflect actual work load for the Victim Coordinator in 2020.


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Staff Contract for Domestic Violence Services Page 61 of 78







As a comparison:


LYNNWOOD,WA - 2016


ANNUALCASES MULTIPLIER TOTALANNUAL--
oorvrESTICVIOLENCE


VERBALDOMESTIC


TYPEOF CASE ANNUALHOURS DIVIDEDBYWEEKS TOTALWEEKLY--
DOMESTICVIOLENCE 1756 33.76/34-n .


VERBALDOMESTIC 297 5.71/6H
“' Data pulledfrom the LynnwoodPoliceDepartment 2016 Annualreport] 1 Victimservices CoordinatorFull11me‘”"


n


EDMONDS,WA


TYPEOFCASE ANNUALCASES MULTIPLIER TOTALANNUAL--
DOMESTICVIOLENCE 149


VERBALDOMESTIC UNLISTEDIN--
TYPEOF CASE ANNUALHOURS DIVIDEDBYWEEKS TOTALWEEKLY-


DOMESTICVIOLENCE 52 11.46/12?-
VERBALDOMESTIC_--


"“ Data pulledfrom the EdmondsPollceDepartment 2016 Annualreport] 1 VlctlmServicesCoordinator @12 hours per week Part Tlme‘”“


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Staff Contract for Domestic Violence Services Page 62 of 78







The following services are included in the fee schedule submitted by Bridge Coordination
Services, LLC.for the 2019-2020 budget:


The Base pay hours incorporate administrative, training, support services as well as direct
services. Total estimated Annual cost of contract Victim Coordinator Services for the budget
years 2019 and 2020:


Annually $22, 500.00


“"" 2019 annual cost will be calculated as of beginning Date of Service and will be charged at an


Hourly Rate of $48.07*”


The following is provided by BCSin 2019 estimate:


0 9 hours per week of Victim Coordinator Services. (424 annual direct service hours)


I Report review with prosecutor's office
- Supervisor Training


I 2 Annual community presentations Citizen'sAcademy


o (Domestic Violence/Teen Dating Violence)


0 (10 hours for training time and preparation of Department specific material)
I ** (outside of the hourly services)


0 Annual Law Enforcement briefing training and updates on Victim Services upon request


of the Chiefof Police
0 (10 hours fortraining time and approximately 15 hours of preparation time for


Department specific material)


0 "‘** Follow up Chief & Deputy Chief review.
' ** (outside of the hourly services)


- Mileage for Domestic Violence Coordinator appearances to South District Court& Call


Out Services to the Police Department.


I A CallOut/Overage bank not to exceed 4 hours per month beginning Date of Service


(Use for CallOut services, as not to reduce direct service hours)
*** CallOut or Overage hours to exceed annual hours will be billed at the hourly rate of


$48.07*”


I ***See Scope of Responsibilityfor included duties


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Staff Contract for Domestic Violence Services Page 63 of 78







Attachment C


Bridge Coordination Services
P.O. BOX2632


Stanwood, WA 98292


Cell (253) 2260266


BridgecoordinationServices@gmai|.corn


Victim Coordinator Scope of Responsibilities
Work is performed in a support position for and within the Police Department in a


civilian/contractposition.
Responsibilities include the essential functionsas listed below:


The Victim Coordinator/DomesticViolence Coordinator is responsible for the coordination of


violence related cases between the victim, the Police Department, the Prosecuting Attorney's


Office and courts ofjurisdiction. Additional duties may include community education on


domestic violence issues and training of department personnel relative to domestic violence or


any other crime victim issues or concerns.


JOB LOCATIONAND EQUIPMENTUTILIZED:


Work is primarily performed in an office environment, however, during the course of case


preparation it may be necessary to meet with victims and in locations other than the police


department upon the request of a Patrol Supervisor, Detective Supervisor or their designee.


These locations include court, prosecutor's office, hospitals or otherjurisdictional agencies.


Equipment utilized includes standard office equipment, cell phone, camera, personal computer


with associated software and peripherals related to Law Enforcement record management.


ESSENTIALFUNCTIONS:


VICTIM SERVICES


- Educate victims of crime of the role of a Victim Coordinator, including mandatory
reporting requirements.


- Support, educate and assist victims of domestic violence through the criminal
proceedings in municipal and superior courts; provide contact information about
superior court and municipal court prosecution services.


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Staff Contract for Domestic Violence Services Page 64 of 78







Assess domestic violence victim's immediate needs (i.e. safe housing, income, etc.); help
victim develop an immediate safety plan; provide information and referral to
community resources, specifically domestic violence services.
Respond to telephone and walk-in requests for service; refer domestic violence victims
to social service or community agencies as appropriate.
Provide domestic violence victims with information regarding filing for and obtaining
civil protection orders.
Provide information to victims regarding criminal justice procedures; appear with
domestic violence victims at arraignments and other criminal court hearings as deemed
necessary, and upon request of the victim.


Educate crime victims regarding the benefits of pursuing prosecution through the
judicial process.


ENFORCEMENT/PROSECUTION


Provide information to law enforcement officers about victim accounts of additional
undisclosed criminal action.
Assist officers and detectives in obtaining additional evidence following the arrest of a
suspect in cases of domestic violence including researching prior history of abuse, assist
in coordinating the receipt of medical records and document findings in accordance
with departmental policy. (Upon the request of the law enforcement agency)
Develop reference materials for use by police officers, front office staff, the prosecuting
attorney and crime victims.
Prepare statistical reports.


Maintain records; prepare requested reports and other documents as requested.
Assist in training department personnel about victim services and specifically domestic
violence.
Provide annual community trainingl Citizens academy presentation in reference to


Domestic Violence and Victim Coordination services.
Provide the prosecuting attorney with status of victim contact and the concerns of the
victims regarding bail setting, release conditions and no-contact orders
Communicate with domestic violence victims seeking the termination of criminal no-


contact orders; .


Provide information to the prosecuting attorney on victim's recommendations and
request for defendant services and sentencing.


Serve as liaison and support personnel for victims and prosecuting attorneys when a
voluntary victim interview is requested.


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Staff Contract for Domestic Violence Services Page 65 of 78







AttachmentD


Preparation: FirstQuarter 2019


ProvideCity with requested documentation
Provide employee background information to Police Department with signed and
NotarizedAuthorizationfor Release of Information(upon acceptance of contract)


BCSemployees fingerprinted for MCPD


Meet with Chiefand establishwork schedule based on Department needs.
EstablishModifiedwork Schedule for First Working Quarter. (Due to Required City and PD
trainings and access)


I Workspace evaluation


FirstWorkingQuarter 2019


Schedule Supervisors/ BCS/Prosecutormeeting for lstweekof May.


Records Unit /Supervisors/ BCS/Prosecutormeeting


Squad Briefing's and introduction to Department Staff.
EstablishPoint of Contact/Chainof Command for Department Victim Coordinator
Work place and Department access, identification cards, Set—upcity email (if applicable),
schedule the online Security Awareness Training and Security Awareness Test on CJIS
online or schedule ACCESS1 TRAINING,etc. (According to PDdepartment policy),
Schedule access to LERMSthrough SNO911


EstablishDepartment Procedurefor report dissemination to Domestic Violence
Coordinator
Schedule community presentation
City/ Police Department Policyoverview


Schedule Victim Coordinator RideAlongs (with Detective or Patrol based on callvolume)


Schedule lT/PD meeting to update DVinformationon City Web—site
Review /Update Department Domestic Violencepublications for the public.
Designate Statistical Data reporting schedule
Progress meeting with Chief (or designee)


Case work


SecondWorking Quarter 2019


Preparation/ Completion of First Working Quarter Statistical Data Report


Prepare Annual Report section addressing Domestic Violence Coordinator position and
Data Collection
ProvidePoliceService Manager with options for up-coming briefing trainings


NNO preparation
Case Work


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Staff Contract for Domestic Violence Services Page 66 of 78







ThirdWorkingQuarter 2019


0 Preparation/ Completion of Second Working Quarter Statistical Data Report
0 Prepare Citizens Academy/ Councilpresentation on Domestic Violence by BCSVictim


Coordinator with up to date Statistical Data.
0 Prepare and present to Chief,DVCrelated information forcity council in preparation of


Domestic ViolenceAwareness month (October)
0 Develop and distribute Domestic ViolenceAwareness month publications and local non-


profit support program. (such as donation drive, purple night lights program, or youth
supporting youth program) ‘


0 Case Work


FirstQuarter 2020


ScheduleSupervisors/ BCS/Prosecutormeeting for review of 2019.


Records Unit /Supervisors/ BCS/Prosecutormeeting


Squad briefing with annual stats


Schedulecommunity presentation
Preparation/ Completion of 2019 StatisticalData Report


Complete AnnualReport Section with annual statistical data and provide final draft to


Chief.
0 Progress meeting with Chief (or designee)
0 Case work


SecondQuarter 2020


0 Preparation/ Completion of First QuarterStatistical Data Report


0 Prepare Annual Report section addressing Domestic ViolenceCoordinator position and
Data Collection.


0 ProvidePoliceService Manager with options for up-coming briefing trainings


o NNO preparation ~


0 Case Work


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Staff Contract for Domestic Violence Services Page 67 of 78







ThirdQuarter 2020


Preparation/ Completion of Second Quarter Statistical Data Report
Prepare and present to Chief,DVCrelated information for city council in preparation of
Domestic Violence Awareness month (October)
Develop and distribute Domestic ViolenceAwareness month publications and local non-
profit support program. (such as donation drive, purple night lights program, or youth
supporting youth program)
Case Work


FourthQuarter 2020


Prepare presentation on Domestic Violenceby BCSVictim Coordinator with up to date
Statistical Data.
Preparation/ Completion of Second Quarter Statistical Data Report


Case Work


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Staff Contract for Domestic Violence Services Page 68 of 78







Attachment E


I
’


CITY OF
‘. ML." '“


M111Creek .
AgendaItem#j


WA 5 H I N G T O N Meeting Date: November 13, 2018


CITY COUNCIL AGENDA SUMMARY
City of Mill Creek, Washington


0


AGENDA ITEM: SUCCESSOR INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT WITH THE CITY OF
EDMONDS FOR THE PURPOSE OF RECEIVING DOMESTIC
VIOLENCE COORDINATOR SERVICES


PROPOSED MOTION:
A


Authorize the City Manager to execute the successor Interlocal Agreement between the City of
Mill Creek and the City of Edmonds for DomesticViolence Coordinator(DVC) services.


KEY FACTS AND INFORMATION SUMMARY: -


The City of Mill Creek and the City of Edmonds have been signors to this Interlocal Agreement
(ILA) since 2007. During that time, there have been several successor Agreements between the
two cities, with the current version set to expire at the end of 2018. RCW 39.34, the Interlocal
Cooperation Act, permits localgovernmentalunits to make the most efficient use of their powers
by enabling them to cooperate with other localitieson a basis of mutual advantage. This
proposed agreement commences January 1, 2019 and runs through December 31, 2021.


It is anticipatedthat during the term of this agreement, the City of Edmonds will terminate this
contract in accordancewith the provisions set forth in Section7, “Termination”. Edmonds staff
have notified Mill Creek staff that the DVC workload requirements in Edmondshave increased,
reducing the ability to provideappropriateservicesto Mill Creek. Similarly, the programs in
Mill Creek are generating additionalworkload to better serve the community and the current
DVC is not able to meet the expectationsrelated to this program growth. The DVC and
Edmonds staff have committed to assisting with the transition and termination will only occur
once Mill Creek has a suitablearrangement in place. Edmonds has not provided Mill Creek with
written noti?cation of their intent to terminate and will not do so until a mutually acceptableplan
is in place.


'


Coordinationof domesticviolencecases is a vital servicenecessary to ensure appropriate level
of support for victims of these crimes as well as appropriate coordination for criminal cases. The
DVC is speci?cally responsible for the coordination of domestic violence related cases between
victims, the police department,the prosecuting attomey’s of?ce and the Courts of jurisdiction.
The program provides victims of domestic violence with education, assists with safety planning
and refers them to community agencies as needed for safe housing or other immediate needs.
This program also makes recommendations to the City Prosecutor regarding case outcomes and
provides input to the District Court Judges regarding issuing/terminating No Contact Orders on
criminal cases as well as providing support to victims at court hearings and assisting victims in.
understanding the civil and criminal legal system. The DVC is also a resource for information
and assistance related to obtaining civil protectionorders. A complete City of Edmonds job
descriptionis included in the ILA and has been adoptedby Mill Creek in conjunction with the
agreement.


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Staff Contract for Domestic Violence Services Page 69 of 78







Maintaining this service is a vital element of the police department’s victim services. Approval
of this ILA will allow the City to provide seamless serviceswhile we prepare to contract with a
new provider.


CITY MANAGER RECOMMENDATION:
Execute the proposedAgreement with the City of Edmonds for Domestic Violence Coordinator
services.


ATTACHMENTS:
0 Interlocalagreement between the City of Mill Creek and the City of Edmonds


Respectfully Submitted:


Robert S. Stowe
Interim City Manager


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Staff Contract for Domestic Violence Services Page 70 of 78







Attachment F


INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF EDMONDS, WASHINGTON
AND THE CITY OF MILL CREEK, WASHINGTON
FOR A DOMESTIC VIOLENCE COORDINATOR


THIS INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and entered into on this day of
20:, by and between the CITY OF EDMONDS, a Washington municipal


corporation(hereinafter referred to as “Edmonds”) and the CITY OF MILL CREEK, Washington
municipalcorporation(hereinafter referred to as “Mill Creek”), each party having been duly organized
and existing under the laws of the State of Washington.


RECITALS


WHEREAS, Edmonds and Mill Creek each require the services of a Domestic Violence
Coordinator to assist the Prosecutor and victims of domesticviolence in each City; and


WHEREAS, Edmonds is authorized by law to hire and retain an employee to providedomestic
violence coordination services to assist victims and the City Prosecutor in domestic violence cases for the
Municipal Court; and


WHEREAS, Edmonds continues to requireDomestic Violence Coordinator services for the
benefit of Edmonds; and


WHEREAS, Edmonds is amenable to allowing Mill Creek to compensate Edmonds in exchange
for receiving services that will be performedby the Edmonds Domestic Violence Coordinator under the
employment, direction, and supervisionof Edmonds; and


WHEREAS, RCW 39.34.080 and other Washington laws authorize any public agency to
contract with another agency to perform servicesand activities that each such public agency is authorized
by law to perform; and


WHEREAS, Edmonds and Mill Creek have considered the costs for such services and skills
required,and determined it is in each of -theirbest interests to enter into this Agreement as authorized and
provided for by RCW 39.34.080 and other Washington law to share such services in cooperationwith
each other; and


WHEREAS, this interlocalAgreement was authorized by the Edmonds City Council on this
day of , 20 and the Mill Creek City Council on this day of


,20 ;


NOW THEREFORE, in considerationof the above and foregoing recitals, the payments to be
made, the mutual promises and covenants herein contained, and for other good and valuable
consideration, the parties hereto agree as follows:


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Staff Contract for Domestic Violence Services Page 71 of 78







Purpose: The purpose of this Agreement is to clarify the conditions under which Edmonds will
provide the following services to Mill Creek (and as itemized further in Attachment A):


a. The Domestic Violence Coordinator (hereinafter referred to as “DVC”) is employed by
Edmonds at all times, and is under the direction, supervision,and control of Edmonds.


b. In return for compensation,Edmonds shall direct the DVC to provide Mill Creek
with services for approximately six (6) hours per week at mutually agreed upon times
and days. Both parties accept minor variation to the six (6) hours per week schedule,
as it is considered impracticalto insure precise distribution of the DVC’s weekly work
hours due to the variation of workload requirements on any particular day, and
distribution of holidays, sick leave and vacation days.


c. As the employer, Edmonds shall providean of?ce and all supplies necessary for the
DVC’s work. At the convenience of Mill Creek, Mill Creek may also providean
alternative workspace in Mill Creek.


d. The DVC will work under Edmonds’ rules and directions. In the event that there is a
conflict between Edmonds’ personnelactivities and rules, and Mill Creek’s, then
Edmonds’will prevail.


2. Duration: The term of the Agreement shall be from January 1, 2019 through December 31,
2021. The Agreement may be renewed for successive periods of three years, upon approval by
each respectiveCity Council at the time of renewal.


3. Contacts: Notice regarding the Agreement terms, conditions, rates, or other communications
shall be addressed to:


City of Edmonds
AssistantChief of Police
250 5"‘Avenue North
Edmonds, WA 98020


City of Mill Creek
Chief of Police
15728 Main Street
Mill Creek, WA 98012


4. Compensation from Mill Creek


a. Mill Creek shall pay Edmonds a percentage of Edmonds’ salary and bene?ts costs for
the DVC that is equal to the percentage of time the DVC is assigned to provide
services to Mill Creek. The amount will be billed in monthly installments. For 2019,
Mill Creek shall pay Edmonds an amount not to exceed $14,120.68, in monthly


installments of $1,176.72 as billed to Mill Creek by Edmonds, as its share of the


DVC yearly salary and bene?ts. Should the DVC position be vacant for a portion of
the month, Edmonds shall pro-rate the invoice accordingly. The annual not to exceed


amount will be adjusted annually by an amount equal to the percentage of Edmonds’
hourly salary and bene?ts costs increases for the DVC as negotiated within its


2


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Staff Contract for Domestic Violence Services Page 72 of 78







collective bargaining agreement with the Edmonds Police Of?cers Association, Staff
Support Group. Mill Creek understands that the DVC position is representedby this
union, and that the salary for the position is governed by the current Collective
BargainingAgreement (CBA) between the EPOA and Edmonds and may increase as


a result of negotiated Cost-of-Living Adjustments (COLA), step increases, longevity
pay, and pro-rated increases associated with the 1% accreditation premium. Mill
Creek will be invoiced for its pro-rata share of all pay and bene?ts (Social Security,
L&I, and PERS 2) that may be due based on the current rate of pay and any increases
negotiated for the DVC.


b. Edmonds will send the monthly invoice to the Mill Creek Chief of Police.


c. Should Mill Creek require services under the Agreement that require overtime pay


under Edmonds’ rules, Edmondsshall pay the overtime pay to the DVC and invoice
Mill Creek for reimbursement as soon as such costs are known to Edmonds.


d. In future budget cycles, Edmonds shall notify Mill Creek of any anticipated DVC
yearly salary and bene?ts rate increases,as described in Section 4(a), by October 15"‘
of the year preceding the effective date of any change. By budgeting sufficient funds


to pay the increased yearly salary rate, Mill Creek will be deemed to have approved
the change and the rate charged to Mill Creek under this Agreement, which shall
thereby be deemed amended.


Record Keeping: Edmonds agrees to maintain records relative to the DVC employment, and to


make such records available to Mill Creek upon request.
'


Indemni?cation and Insurance: Edmonds shall indemnify Mill Creek, its officers, agents and


employees, from and against any claim, damages, loses, and expenses, including but not limited


to reasonable attorney’s fees, arising from Edmonds’ performance under this Agreement;


provided, to the extent the claim, damages, losses, and expenses are caused by intentional acts of


or by the concurrent negligence of Mill Creek, its of?cers, agents or employees, Edmonds’


indemni?cation obligation hereunder shall be limited to Edmonds’ proportionateshare of liability


as agreed to by the parties to this Agreement or determined by a court of competent jurisdiction.


Termination: This Agreement may be terminated before expirationby written noticefrom either
party. Termination by such notice shall become effective 90 days after receipt of notice.


Governing Law: The parties hereto agree that, except where expressly otherwise provided, the


laws and administrative rules and regulations of the State of Washington shall govern in any


matter relating to this Agreement.


Entire Agreement: This Agreement represents the entire integrated Interlocal Agreement


between Edmonds and Mill Creek and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, or


agreements on this matter, either written or oral.


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Staff Contract for Domestic Violence Services Page 73 of 78







10. Interlocal Cooperation Act: The parties agree that no separate legal or administrative entities
are necessary in order to carry out this Agreement. If determined by a court to be necessary for
purposes of the Interlocal CooperationAct, Ch. 39.34 RCW, an administrator or joint board
responsible for administering the Agreement will be established by mutual agreement. Any real
or personal property used by either party in connection with this Agreement will be acquired,
held, and disposedof by that party in its discretion, and the other party will have no joint or other
interest herein. No partnershipor joint venture between the partiesis created by this Agreement.


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the above and foregoing Agreement has been executed in duplicate
by the parties hereto and made effective on


CITY OF EDMONDS


David O. Earling, Mayor


ATTEST/AUTHENTICATED:


Scott Passey, City Clerk


APPROVED AS TO FORM


Of?ce of the City Attorney


20


CITY OF MILL CREEK


Robert S Stowe, Interim City Manager


ATTEST/AUTHENTICATED:


Gina P?ster, Acting City Clerk


APPROVED AS TO FORM


Scott Missal], City Attorney


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Staff Contract for Domestic Violence Services Page 74 of 78







Attachment A


City of


EDMONDS
Washington


DOMESTIC VIOLENCE COORDINATOR— Part Time


Department: Police


Bargaining Unit: Law Support FLSA Status: Non Exempt


Revised Date: January 2012 Reports To: Sergeant


POSITION PURPOSE: Under the supervision of a sergeant, responsible for the coordination of


domestic violence related cases between victims, policedepartment, prosecutingattorney’s office and the


Courts of jurisdiction; providesvictims of domesticviolence with education; assists with safety planning


and refers them to community agencies as needed‘for safe housing or other immediate needs; makes


recommendations to the City Prosecutor regarding case outcomes and provides input to the Municipal
Court Judge regarding issuing/terminating No Contact Orders on criminal cases; provides support to


victims at court hearings and assists victims in understanding the civil and criminal legal system; provides


information and assistancerelated to obtaining civil protection orders.


ESSENTIAL JOB FUNCTIONS AND RESPONSIBILITIES:


Thefollowing duties ARE NOT intended to serve as a comprehensive list ofall duties performed by all employeesin
this classification,only a representative summary ofthe primary duties and responsibilities. Incumbent(s) may not


be required to perform all duties listedand may be required to perform additional, position-speci?cduties.


0 Supports, educates and assists victims of domestic violence through the criminal proceedings in
municipal and superior courts; provides information regarding criminal justice procedures and
appears with domestic violence victims at arraignments, pre-trial hearings, trials and other court


hearings as deemed necessary.


0 Provides information to domestic violence victims regarding the benefitsof prosecuting domestic
violence cases.


a Receives and reviews all police reports concerning domestic violence regardless if a crime has
occurred.


0 Assists officers and detectives in obtaining evidence of domestic violence; takes photographs of
victims’ injuries, researches prior history of abuse and obtains medical records and document
?ndings in accordance with departmentalpolicy.


0 Contacts victims of domestic violence by phone to provide information or to set up appointments
to meet in person.


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Staff Contract for Domestic Violence Services Page 75 of 78







Assesses victim’s immediate needs (i.e. safe housing, income, etc.), helps victim develop a safety
plan; provides information regarding ?ling for and obtaining civil protectionorders.


Mails domestic violence related materials and community resource information to domestic
violence victims and meets with victims of domestic violence to provide case information,
domestic violence education,safety planning and referrals to community resources.


Appears at court hearings related to domesticviolence cases; provides input to the Prosecutor and
the Judge regarding No Contact Orders and attends arraignments and pretrial hearings.


Updates domestic violence victims on the status of criminal cases after court hearings where
victims are not present.


Reviews domestic violence cases with City Prosecutor to discuss best outcomes for each case and
makes charging and sentencing recommendations.
Develops reference materials for use by court staff, prosecuting attorney and domestic violence
victims.


Responds to telephone and walk-in requests for service and refers victims to social service or
community agencies as appropriate.


Prepares statistical reports as directed and attends department staff meeting when requested.


Keeps updated ?le infonnation pertaining to all criminal cases via computer; communicates via
email with the Prosecutor and Probation Department regarding criminal cases and corresponds
with outside agencies and other professionalsto discuss domesticviolencerelated issues.


Prepares required reports and other documents as required and assist in developing operational
policiesand procedures.Assists in training departmentpersonnelrelative to domestic violence.


Maintains physicalabilities as noted under Working Conditions (below).


Performs other duties as assigned.


Required Knowledge of:


Principles and dynamics of domesticviolence.


Federal, state and local laws relating to domesticviolence,protection orders and No Contact Orders.


City and department policies.


Criminal justice system and proceduresin municipalcourt and state court.


Victimology and crisis interventiontechniques.


Locating and ?nding resources for victims’ assistance.


Report preparationand record keeping.


Effective communication principlesand practicesto include publicrelations.


Current of?ce procedures, methods, and equipment including computers and computer
applications such as word processing and spreadsheets.


English usage, spelling, grammar and punctuation.


Principlesof business letter writing.


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Staff Contract for Domestic Violence Services Page 76 of 78







Required Skill in:


0 Ability to manage multiple tasks, assignments and follow-upinvestigations.


0 Responding effectively in crisis situationswith a judgment free attitude.
0 Working with individuals and agencies with a variety of backgroundsand purposes.


0 Familiarity with community resources and ability to make appropriatereferrals.


0 Working directly with adult and child victims of domestic violence.
0 Testifying accurately and effectively in court.


0 Interviewing victims, witnesses, and suspects.


0 Interpreting and administering policies and procedures sufficient to administer, discuss, resolve,
and explain them.


0 Maintaining con?dentiality and communicating with tact and diplomacy.
0 Effective oral and written communication principlesand practices to include public relations and


customer service.


0 Current of?ce procedures, methods and equipment including computers and computer
applicationsaffecting work.


0 English usage, spelling, grammar and punctuation.


MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS:


Education and Experience:


Preferred education and experience are an Associate’s Degree in Social or Behavioral Science, Criminal
Justice, Psychology, or related ?eld and prior experience in the legal system working in a non-pro?t
victim oriented program or within the criminal justice system performing domestic violence/victims
advocacy, assisting victims, or performing crisis/counseling intervention; OR an equivalent combination
of education, training and experience.


Licenses or Certifications:


Valid Washington State Driver License.


Must be able to successfully complete and pass background check.


May be required to successfully complete and pass other examinations as required by law or by city and
department policies and/or Civil Service Commission Rules and Regulations.


WORKING CONDITIONS:


Environment:


0 Standard office environment.


0 Driving a vehicle to conduct work.


Physical Abilities:


0 Hearing, speaking, or otherwise communicating to exchange information with others in person or
on the telephone.


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Staff Contract for Domestic Violence Services Page 77 of 78







0 Sitting, standing or otherwise remaining stationary for extended periods of time.


0 Operating a computer keyboard and camera.


0 Ascending/descendingstairs and walking.


0 Li?ing/carrying, pushing or pulling heavy items up to 50 pounds.
0 Bending at the waist, kneeling or crouching or otherwise positioning oneself to accomplishtasks.
0 Operating a computer keyboard.


Hazards:


0 The nature of the position can involve situationswhich may present a danger to personal safety.


0 Exposure to infectious disease.


Incumbent Signature: Date:


Department Head:


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Staff Contract for Domestic Violence Services Page 78 of 78





		Agenda

		C. Settlement Agreement with Comcast Regarding Franchise Fee Audit

		D. 2019 Winter Storm Response Update

		D. PowerPoint - 2019 Winter Storm Response Update

		E. Regular Council Meeting - 04 Dec 2018 - Minutes - Html

		G. Council Planning Schedule

		H. Contract for Domestic Violence Services




